
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

February 27, 2024, 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
INVOCATION:  Father John Woolway, Saint Pancratius Catholic Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Scout Pack 21 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Ariel Pe 
 Vice Mayor Todd Rogers 
 Council Member Cassandra Chase 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Jeff Wood 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an item be removed for 
individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be considered immediately 
following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 MEETING MINUTES - Staff recommends City Council approve Minutes of the Meetings held 

February 13, 2024 
 
RI-2 PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS - Staff recommends City Council approve report of personnel 

transactions. 
 
RI-3 REGISTERS OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends City Council approve registers of demands. 
 
RI-4 CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES’ ACTIVITIES - Staff recommends City Council receive and file 

the report. 
 
RI-5 APPOINTMENT TO SOUTHEAST LOS ANGELES COUNTY WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT BOARD (SELACO WDB) - Staff recommends the City Council approve the 
appointment of Erika Parada to the Southeast Los Angeles County Workforce Development Board 
of Directors. 

 
RI-6 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR 2024 CIVIC CENTER BLOCK PARTY FIREWORKS 

DISPLAY - Staff recommends the City Council approve the public fireworks display to be offered 
as a component of the Civic Center Block Party at Lakewood Center on Saturday, June 29, 2024 
and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract with Fireworks & Stage FX America, LLC for 
the contracted services, not to exceed $19,000. 

 



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a qualified individual with a disability and need an 
accommodation to participate in the City Council meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, 

CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; or at cityclerk@lakewoodcity.org at least 48 hours in advance to ensure that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting. 

 
Agenda items are on file in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, and are available for public review 

during regular business hours.  Any supplemental material distributed after the posting of the agenda will be made available for 
public inspection during normal business hours in the City Clerk’s Office.  For your convenience, the agenda and the supporting 

documents are available in an alternate format by request and are also posted on the City’s website at www.lakewoodcity.org 

City Council Agenda 
February 27, 2024 
Page 2 

 

 

ROUTINE ITEMS: - Continued 
RI-7 AWARD OF BID FOR PW PROJECT 2024-2, FY 23/24 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT ADA RAMP REPLACEMENTS - Staff recommends the City Council award a 
contract for FY 23/24 Community Development Block Grant ADA Ramp Replacements; authorize 
staff to approve a cumulative total of contract change orders, as needed; appropriate Measure M 
funds; authorize staff to approve Willdan’s proposal to provide construction inspection under their 
existing Agreement for Engineering Services, in an amount of $58,246 to be funded with Measure 
M funds; and adopt the specifications and working details for the project. 

 

RI-8 PURCHASE OF DESKTOP COMPUTER REPLACEMENTS - Staff recommends the City 
Council authorize the purchase of 200 Dell Optiplex 7010 desktop computers from Dell Marketing 
at an amount not to exceed $189,000. 

 

RI-9 RENEWAL OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CYBERSECURITY SERVICES PROVIDER 
AGREEMENT - Staff recommends the City Council approve an agreement with Fortra to provide 
cybersecurity services for an amount not to exceed $37,800 for a 12-month period, and authorize 
the City Manager or his designee to enter into an agreement as approved by the City Attorney. 

 

LEGISLATION: 
2.1 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1; REGARDING TAX 

FREE CERTIFICATION PROVISIONS - Staff recommends the City Council adopt the proposed 
ordinance. 

 

REPORTS: 
3.1 ADOPTION OF 2024 LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM – Staff recommends the City Council adopt the 

Legislative Platform for 2024. 
 

3.2 APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TETRA TECH, INC. TO 
PROVIDE ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR PIPELINE ASSESSMENT AND PRELIMINARY 
DESIGN - Staff recommends the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with 
Tetra Tech Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $68,000, to provide engineering services for pipeline 
assessment and preliminary design within proposed Pure Water Southern California project 
alignment; and appropriate $68,000 from the General Fund for Water Infrastructure Upgrades and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the corresponding agreement in a form approved by the City Attorney. 

 

3.3 PREVIEW OF 2024 EARTH WALK EVENT - Staff recommends City Council receive and file the 
report. 

 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1. REGISTER OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends Housing Successor Agency approve registers of 
demands. 

 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 RI-1 

 Routine Item 1 – City Council Minutes 
 
 will be available prior to the meeting. 





































City of Lakewood

Presents

Celebrate Freedom
A Fireworks Extravaganza

June 29th, 2024

Produced by

"The Difference Is Quality"



City of Lakewood
Celebrate Freedom

June 29th, 2024

Opening Announcement Aerial Grand Finale

       Program        Program
A A

Aerial Titanium Flash Salutes Color/Multicolor Finale

3" 10 3" 300

Color & Multi-Color Finale Shells

3" 10 Totals

       Program
Main Show A

Color, Multi-Color, Flitter, Glitter, Shells
Electric Color & Color Changing Shells 3" 700

3" 220 Total Shells 700

Distinctive & Unique Aerial Shells Grand Totals 700
3" 160

Running Time in Minutes
15.0

Price

Program A
Total Cost $19,000.00



City of Lakewood
Show Concept, Services List,

and Miscellaneous Details

Services List:

Fireworks America to Provide:

1)  Permit Filings as Required 1)  A Suitable Firing Site
2)  Storage and Delivery of fireworks 2)  Adequate Security for Firing Site
3)  All Equipment to produce the display 3)  Permit Fees
4)  Insurance Aggregate amount of 4)  Standby Firefighter Fees, if req'd
      $6,000,000  (Combined Single Limits) 5)  Sound System and Playback
5)  Worker's Compensation Insurance 6)  Adequate Permit Time as
      (Statute) listed below.
6)  Sound Track 7) Suitable Restroom and Handwash
7)  Choreography facilities for the crew

Minimum Time Required

Fireworks America will provide permitting services on your behalf.  There are
minimum times required to pull these permits.  Contracts and deposits must
be signed and back to us prior to starting these services.  Here are the
minimum permit times.

Land Based Shows based require a minimum of 30 days to permit based
on Local and State Ordinance, FAA and other requirements.

Water based shows require a minimum of 60 days to permit based on
all of the above PLUS Coast Guard requirements.

Please plan your show accordingly.

Operators and Assistants:

Fireworks America will provide the services of a State Licensed Pyrotechnic
Operator and experienced crew to fire your display.  The entire crew will be
covered under Fireworks America's Worker's Compensation Insurance.

Continued

City of Lakewood to Provide:



Payment Terms:

Method of Discharge:

Choreography:

50% of the Sum is to be paid to FA at the signing of the Contract,Balance Net 10
Days After Display

The show will be fired electrically.  Each fireworks event will have its own ignitor
for precise timing.  Fireworks America will provide the firing panel, cable,
distribution system and power for the show.

The program will be choreographed utilizing the latest innovation in
computerized-fireworks choreography.  This will allow maximum accuracy in
firing and timing of the display.  The fireworks will follow the music precisely and
provide an exhilarating experience for the viewer.



Fireworks & Stage FX America, LLC
dba:  Fireworks America

PO Box 488
Lakeside, CA  92040

619-938-8277
619-938-8273  Fax

1)  This Contract, entered into this 7th day of February, 2024, by and between
FIREWORKS & STAGE FX AMERICA, LLC., dba FIREWORKS AMERICA,
a California  Corporation, duly licensed by the Federal Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms
and Explosives and the State of California, hereinafter referred to as "FA" and
CITY OF LAKEWOOD hereinafter referred to as "BUYER".

2)  FA agrees to furnish BUYER, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein,
One (1) fireworks/special effects display(s) as per Program A, submitted, accepted
and made part hereof, and the services of a licensed pyrotechnic operator who will be in  charge of
the execution of said display unless otherwise agreed in writing.  This display is to be performed
on June 29th, 2024, located at 500 Lakewood Center Mall, Lakewood, CA 90712.
The time of the display is to be at: 9:10PM

3)  BUYER agrees to pay  FA the sum of: Nineteen Thousand  Dollars and No Cents
($19,000.00), per the following terms:

50% of the Sum is to be paid to FA at the signing of the Contract,Balance Net 10 Days After Display

4) Should the BUYER default on these payment terms, a finance charge at a rate of 1.5% per month,
18% annual percentage rate, or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is greater, will be
charged and accrued on the unpaid balance of the Contract until the Contract is satisfied.
FA is hereby authorized to receive BUYER's financial information from any person or entity for the
purpose of verifying BUYER's ability to pay.

5)  BUYER, at its expense, agrees to provide FA a suitable DISPLAY SITE in which to
stage, setup and fire the display.  This DISPLAY SITE will incorporate an appropriate fallout zone,
which has to be approved by FA, and that will fulfill any requirements set forth by any governing legal
authority.  Should the proposed site require the involvement of specialized equipment, watercraft or
clean up, BUYER agrees to provide said equipment and labor at BUYER's expense.



Fireworks America Public Display Contract

6)  BUYER, at its expense, agrees to provide adequate security  to prevent any  access to the
DISPLAY SITE by members of the general public or any persons not expressly approved by FA.  Any
claim arising from damage to persons or property caused by any unauthorized access to the
DISPLAY SITE is the sole responsibility of the BUYER.  Should a multiple day setup be required,
BUYER shall provide appropriate security during all the times FA is away from the DISPLAY SITE.

7)  BUYER, at its expense, agrees to pay for any required "standby" Firemen, and/or any
applicable permit costs and fees as required by state and local statutes, ordinances or regulations.
BUYER agrees to indemnify FA for any and all changes or adjustments made to the DISPLAY at the
request of any governing legal authority.

8)  BUYER, at its expense, shall provide FA sufficient parking, all necessary site and event passes and
allow FA sufficient time and available access, as determined by FA, to safely and professionally setup
and discharge the display and subsequently remove the display equipment from the DISPLAY SITE.

9)  Should BUYER fail to comply or prove itself unable to comply with the requirements stated in
paragraphs 5, 6, 7 and 8 herein, FA shall have no obligation to continue with the performance
of the display and the BUYER agrees to  pay the full contract price plus any additional associated
expenses incurred by FA.

10)  BUYER agrees to assume the risk of weather, or any other cause that is  beyond FA’s control,
that may prevent the display from being discharged on the scheduled date and time.  In the event
that FA, at its sole discretion, determines that the weather unsuitable for the discharge of the display,
BUYER shall pay per the cancellation terms contained in paragraph 11 herein.

11)  BUYER shall have the option to cancel this display at any time.  If BUYER decides to cancel,
BUYER agrees to pay to FA 35% of the display contract price and all other associated costs incurred by
FA, including, but not limited to, permits, insurance, pyrotechnic operator's fee, transportation,
choreography, custom design or any other provable expense associated with the execution of the Display.

12) BUYER agrees to hold FA harmless from all claims and penalties made against FA in the event that
the display fails to start on time or is disrupted after commencement as a direct result of equipment or
product malfunction or failure.

13)  FA agrees to provide insurance coverage of Six Million Dollars, Bodily Injury and
Property Damage and statutory limits for Worker's Compensation.  This insurance covers the
operations of FA only and does not extend to any other aspect of the event at which such a
display may be held.  FA’s operations are deemed complete when FA has vacated the
premises.

14)  Should BUYER fail to perform its obligations as set forth herein, BUYER agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold FA harmless from all claims and suits made against FA in
conjunction with the discontinuance or cancellation of the display.



Fireworks America Public Display Contract

15)  FA agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless BUYER from and against all claims and
liability arising out of the services to be performed by FA hereunder, except to the extent arising
from BUYER'S negligence or willful misconduct.

16) The laws of the State of California shall govern this contract.   It is agreed that any court of
competent jurisdiction located in the County of San Diego, CA  shall be proper venue for an action.
Should such action be brought to enforce or interpret the terms or provisions of this Contract,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs in addition to any other
relief to which they may be entitled.

17)  Nothing in this contract shall be construed as forming a partnership, joint venture, agency or
any form of legal relationship, other than contractual, between BUYER and FA.  Neither party
shall be held responsible for any agreements or obligations not expressly provided for herein
and shall be severally responsible for their own separate debts and obligations.

18)  BUYER shall not under any circumstances, be entitled to recover any consequential
damages from FA. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed as a modification or limitation
on the insurance coverages afforded in Paragraph 13 herein.

19) Buyer, at its expense, agrees to provide FA crews with suitable restroom and handwash facilities
in the immediate area of the shooting/working location.

20)  Other Considerations: NONE

21)  This agreement shall be binding on the parties and on their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns.

In Witness the parties hereto, by or through their duly authorized agents, have set
their hands and seals this 7th day of February, 2024.

Fireworks & Stage FX America, LLC. City of Lakewood

By: Matt Biolchino By: __________________________

Title: Area Manager Title: _________________________

Signature: _____________________ Signature: _____________________













Your quote is ready for purchase.
Complete the purchase of your personalized quote through our secure online checkout before

the quote expires on Mar. 24, 2024.

You can download a copy of this quote during checkout.

Place your order

Quote Name:
2/21/24 ArcGIS Power
Userr PC - Optiiplex Plus
Tower

Quote No. 3000172855797.1
Total $33,080.81
Customer # 5336328
Quoted On Feb. 23, 2024
Expires by Mar. 24, 2024

Contract Name Dell NASPO Computer
Equipment PA - California

Contract Code C000001115143
Customer Agreement # 23026 / 7-23-70-55-01
Deal ID 27151233

Sales Rep Tanner Lee
Phone (800) 456-3355, 6178991
Email Tanner_Lee@Dell.com
Billing To ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
5050 CLARK AVE 
LAKEWOOD, CA 90712-2697

Message from your Sales Rep

Please use the Order button to securely place the order with your preferred payment method online. You may contact
your Dell sales team if you have any questions. Thank you for shopping with Dell. 

Regards,
Tanner Lee

Shipping Group

Shipping To
PURCHASING WAREHOUSE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
6929 NIXON ST 
BLDG C - WHSE 
LAKEWOOD, CA 90713-2810 
(562) 866-9771

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Product Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex Tower (Plus 7010) $1,515.97 20 $30,319.40

Page 1
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

https://www.dell.com/quote/purchase/ordernow/en-us/validatequote?context=kQ4OumQYKJ7na9rxipx5zP0vD3iLkijIK%252BSaZzvYN7JBjmLWS84I6BbcP46W%252F3fXs4lkAlRaa3p58h7o92jo33D3qH03hAhvkERwlipcKZKrx%252F9QRhRpjkMnhSC1NLan&contextversion=2&ref=cce_em_qto
mailto:Tanner_Lee@Dell.com


Subtotal:
Shipping:

Non-Taxable Amount:
Taxable Amount:

Estimated Tax:

Total:

$30,319.40
$0.00

$3,378.80
$26,940.60

$2,761.41

$33,080.81

License Subtotal for Commitment Term: $0.00
*Excludes Taxes

Page 2
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

https://www.dell.com/en-us/dt/services/deployment-services/index.htm?tfcid=84596670&cid=316360&lid=5993986&dgc=em


Shipping Group Details

Shipping To
PURCHASING WAREHOUSE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
6929 NIXON ST 
BLDG C - WHSE 
LAKEWOOD, CA 90713-2810 
(562) 866-9771

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex Tower (Plus 7010)
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Mar. 09, 2024
Contract # C000001115143
Customer Agreement # 23026 / 7-23-70-55-01

$1,515.97 20 $30,319.40

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex Tower (Plus 7010) 210-BFWR - 20 -

13th Gen Intel Core i7-13700K (8+8 Cores/30MB/24T/3.4GHz to
5.3GHz/125W) 338-CHDQ - 20 -

Windows 11 Pro, English, Brazilian Portuguese PT-BR, French,
Spanish 619-ARSB - 20 -

No Microsoft Office License Included - 30 day Trial Offer Only 658-BCSB - 20 -

32GB (2X16GB) DDR5 Non-ECC Memory 370-AGWK - 20 -

M.2 2280 512GB PCIe NVMe Class 40 Solid State Drive 400-BOQF - 20 -

Thermal Pad and Screw 400-BOSH - 20 -

NO RAID 817-BBBN - 20 -

NVIDIA GeForce RTX 3050 8GB GDDR6,Full Height,3xDP,1xHDMI 490-BIDM - 20 -

OptiPlex Tower Plus with 500W Platinum Power Supply 329-BHOO - 20 -

System Power Cord (Philipine/TH/US) 450-AAOJ - 20 -

No Optical Disk Drive 429-ABIV - 20 -

CMS Software not included 632-BBBJ - 20 -

No Media Card Reader 379-BBHM - 20 -

No Additional Video Ports 492-BCKH - 20 -

No Keyboard Selected 580-AABG - 20 -

No Mouse Selected 570-AAAF - 20 -

No Cover Selected 325-BCZQ - 20 -

Dell Additional Software 658-BFPY - 20 -

ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBLW - 20 -

Dell Watchdog Timer 379-BEZG - 20 -

Quick Start Guide, OptiPlex Tower Plus 340-DDFR - 20 -

Trusted Platform Module (Discrete TPM Enabled) 329-BBJL - 20 -

Shipping Material 340-CNZU - 20 -

Shipping Label 389-BBUU - 20 -

Regulatory Label for OptiPlex Tower Plus 7010 500W, FSJ 389-EFMQ - 20 -

No Hard Drive Bracket, Dell OptiPlex 575-BBKX - 20 -

Intel Rapid Storage Technology, OptiPlex Tower 658-BFQN - 20 -

Page 3
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 



Intel Core i7 vPro Enterprise Processor Label 389-EDDR - 20 -

Desktop BTO Standard shipment 800-BBIO - 20 -

No Additional Add In Cards 382-BBHX - 20 -

Custom Configuration 817-BBBB - 20 -

Internal Speaker 520-AARD - 20 -

EPEAT 2018 Registered (Silver) 379-BDTO - 20 -

Intel vPro Enterprise 631-ADPP - 20 -

No Additional Network Card Selected (Integrated NIC included) 555-BBJO - 20 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 812-3886 - 20 -

ProSupport: 7x24 Technical Support, 5 Years 812-3900 - 20 -

ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite 5 Years 812-3910 - 20 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//support.dell.com/ProSupport 989-3449 - 20 -

No Accidental Damage Selected 981-4619 - 20 -

Subtotal:
Shipping:

Estimated Tax:

Total:

$30,319.40
$0.00

$2,761.41

$33,080.81

Page 4
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 



Important Notes

Terms of Sale

This Quote will, if Customer issues a purchase order for the quoted items that is accepted by Supplier, constitute a contract between the
entity issuing this Quote (“Supplier”) and the entity to whom this Quote was issued (“Customer”). Unless otherwise stated herein, pricing is
valid for thirty days from the date of this Quote. All product, pricing and other information is based on the latest information available and is
subject to change. Supplier reserves the right to cancel this Quote and Customer purchase orders arising from pricing errors. Taxes and/or
freight charges listed on this Quote are only estimates. The final amounts shall be stated on the relevant invoice. Additional freight charges
will be applied if Customer requests expedited shipping. Please indicate any tax exemption status on your purchase order and send your tax
exemption certificate to Tax_Department@dell.com or ARSalesTax@emc.com, as applicable.

Governing Terms: This Quote is subject to: (a) a separate written agreement between Customer or Customer’s affiliate and Supplier or a
Supplier´s affiliate to the extent that it expressly applies to the products and/or services in this Quote or, to the extent there is no such
agreement, to the applicable set of Dell’s Terms of Sale (available at www.dell.com/terms or www.dell.com/oemterms), or for cloud/as-a-
Service offerings, the applicable cloud terms of service (identified on the Offer Specific Terms referenced below); and (b) the terms
referenced herein (collectively, the “Governing Terms”). Different Governing Terms may apply to different products and services on this
Quote. The Governing Terms apply to the exclusion of all terms and conditions incorporated in or referred to in any documentation submitted
by Customer to Supplier.

Supplier Software Licenses and Services Descriptions: Customer’s use of any Supplier software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, or in the absence of accompanying terms, the applicable terms posted on www.Dell.com/eula. Descriptions and
terms for Supplier-branded standard services are stated at www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global or for certain infrastructure products at
www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm.

Offer-Specific, Third Party and Program Specific Terms: Customer’s use of third-party software is subject to the license terms that
accompany the software. Certain Supplier-branded and third-party products and services listed on this Quote are subject to additional,
specific terms stated on www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms (“Offer Specific Terms”).

In case of Resale only: Should Customer procure any products or services for resale, whether on standalone basis or as part of a solution,
Customer shall include the applicable software license terms, services terms, and/or offer-specific terms in a written agreement with the end-
user and provide written evidence of doing so upon receipt of request from Supplier.

In case of Financing only: If Customer intends to enter into a financing arrangement (“Financing Agreement”) for the products and/or
services on this Quote with Dell Financial Services LLC or other funding source pre-approved by Supplier (“FS”), Customer may issue its
purchase order to Supplier or to FS. If issued to FS, Supplier will fulfill and invoice FS upon confirmation that: (a) FS intends to enter into a
Financing Agreement with Customer for this order; and (b) FS agrees to procure these items from Supplier. Notwithstanding the Financing
Agreement, Customer’s use (and Customer’s resale of and the end-user’s use) of these items in the order is subject to the applicable
governing agreement between Customer and Supplier, except that title shall transfer from Supplier to FS instead of to Customer. If FS
notifies Supplier after shipment that Customer is no longer pursuing a Financing Agreement for these items, or if Customer fails to enter into
such Financing Agreement within 120 days after shipment by Supplier, Customer shall promptly pay the Supplier invoice amounts directly to
Supplier.

Customer represents that this transaction does not involve: (a) use of U.S. Government funds; (b) use by or resale to the U.S. Government;
or (c) maintenance and support of the product(s) listed in this document within classified spaces. Customer further represents that this
transaction does not require Supplier’s compliance with any statute, regulation or information technology standard applicable to a U.S.
Government procurement.

For certain products shipped to end users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to Customer’s invoice. Supplier
encourages customers to dispose of electronic equipment properly.

Electronically linked terms and descriptions are available in hard copy upon request.

Page 5
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

mailto:Tax_Department@dell.com
mailto:ARSalesTax@emc.com
http://www.dell.com/terms
http://www.dell.com/oemterms
http://www.dell.com/eula
http://www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global
http://www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm
http://www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms


Your quote is ready for purchase.
Complete the purchase of your personalized quote through our secure online checkout before

the quote expires on Mar. 24, 2024.

You can download a copy of this quote during checkout.

Place your order

Quote Name: 2/21/24 Standrad User PC
- Optiplex

Quote No. 3000172862320.1
Total $153,777.94
Customer # 5336328
Quoted On Feb. 23, 2024
Expires by Mar. 24, 2024

Contract Name Dell NASPO Computer
Equipment PA - California

Contract Code C000001115143
Customer Agreement # 23026 / 7-23-70-55-01
Deal ID 27151233

Sales Rep Tanner Lee
Phone (800) 456-3355, 6178991
Email Tanner_Lee@Dell.com
Billing To ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
5050 CLARK AVE 
LAKEWOOD, CA 90712-2697

Message from your Sales Rep

Please use the Order button to securely place the order with your preferred payment method online. You may contact
your Dell sales team if you have any questions. Thank you for shopping with Dell. 

Regards,
Tanner Lee

Shipping Group

Shipping To
PURCHASING WAREHOUSE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
6929 NIXON ST 
BLDG C - WHSE 
LAKEWOOD, CA 90713-2810 
(562) 866-9771

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Product Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex Small Form Factor (7010) $785.00 180 $141,300.00

Page 1
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

https://www.dell.com/quote/purchase/ordernow/en-us/validatequote?context=kQ4OumQYKJ7na9rxipx5zOuKMhJ%252Fnr53qyI2cRz2DIDBIXppEI36SUSEQq22c%252BWu5EO65%252F3oosD%252FkLvMq%252BUIP62txC3a92z5vrJmKq4yVxk%252BeLMRXo2TviEAULsxaM%252FO&contextversion=2&ref=cce_em_qto
mailto:Tanner_Lee@Dell.com


Subtotal:
Shipping:

Non-Taxable Amount:
Taxable Amount:

Estimated Tax:

Total:

$141,300.00
$0.00

$19,564.20
$121,735.80

$12,477.94

$153,777.94

License Subtotal for Commitment Term: $0.00
*Excludes Taxes

Special pricing may be available for qualified customers. Please contact your DFS Sales Representative for details.

Page 2
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

https://www.dell.com/en-us/dt/services/deployment-services/index.htm?tfcid=84596670&cid=316360&lid=5993986&dgc=em


Shipping Group Details

Shipping To
PURCHASING WAREHOUSE 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
6929 NIXON ST 
BLDG C - WHSE 
LAKEWOOD, CA 90713-2810 
(562) 866-9771

Shipping Method
Standard Delivery

Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex Small Form Factor (7010)
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Mar. 09, 2024
Contract # C000001115143
Customer Agreement # 23026 / 7-23-70-55-01

$785.00 180 $141,300.00

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

OptiPlex Small Form Factor (7010) 210-BFXG - 180 -

13th Gen Intel Core i5-13500 (6+8 Cores/24MB/20T/2.5GHz to
4.8GHz/65W) 338-CHBS

-
180 -

Windows 11 Pro, English, Brazilian Portuguese PT-BR, French,
Spanish 619-ARSB - 180 -

No Microsoft Office License Included - 30 day Trial Offer Only 658-BCSB - 180 -

16GB (1x16GB) DDR4 non ECC memory 370-AGFR - 180 -

M.2 2230 512GB PCIe NVMe Class 35 Solid State Drive 400-BOQM - 180 -

M.2 22x30 Thermal Pad 412-AAQT - 180 -

M2X3.5 Screw for SSD/DDPE 773-BBBC - 180 -

AMD Radeon RX 6300 2GB GDDR6,Low Profile,2xDP 490-BIDH - 180 -

OptiPlex SFF with 180W Bronze Power Supply 329-BHPU - 180 -

No Power Cord 450-ABHX - 180 -

No Optical Drive 429-ABKF - 180 -

CMS Software not included 632-BBBJ - 180 -

No Additional Video Ports 492-BCKH - 180 -

Dell KB216 Wired Keyboard English 580-ADJC - 180 -

No Mouse Selected 570-AAAF - 180 -

No Cover Selected 325-BCZQ - 180 -

Dell Additional Software 658-BFPY - 180 -

ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBLW - 180 -

Dell Watchdog Timer 379-BEZG - 180 -

Quick Start Guide, OptiPlex Small Form 340-DDFL - 180 -

Trusted Platform Module (Discrete TPM Enabled) 329-BBJL - 180 -

Shipping Material 340-CQYR - 180 -

Shipping Label 389-BBUU - 180 -

Regulatory Label for OptiPlex SFF 180W, FSJ 389-FBFX - 180 -

No Hard Drive Bracket, Dell OptiPlex 575-BBKX - 180 -

SW Driver, Intel Rapid Storage Technology, OptiPlex Small Form 658-BFQF - 180 -

Intel Core i5 Processor Label 340-CUEW - 180 -

Page 3
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 



Desktop BTO Standard shipment 800-BBIO - 180 -

Chassis Intrusion Switch 461-AAJL - 180 -

No Additional Add In Cards 382-BBHX - 180 -

Internal Speaker 520-AARD - 180 -

No Out-of-Band Systems Management 631-ADPH - 180 -

Custom Configuration 817-BBBB - 180 -

EPEAT 2018 Registered (Silver) 379-BDTO - 180 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 803-8583 - 180 -

ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite, 5 Years 803-8649 - 180 -

ProSupport: 7x24 Technical Support, 5 Years 803-8705 - 180 -

Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit
//support.dell.com/ProSupport

989-3449 - 180 -

No Accidental Damage Selected 981-4619 - 180 -

Subtotal:
Shipping:

Estimated Tax:

Total:

$141,300.00
$0.00

$12,477.94

$153,777.94

Page 4
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 



Important Notes

Terms of Sale

This Quote will, if Customer issues a purchase order for the quoted items that is accepted by Supplier, constitute a contract between the
entity issuing this Quote (“Supplier”) and the entity to whom this Quote was issued (“Customer”). Unless otherwise stated herein, pricing is
valid for thirty days from the date of this Quote. All product, pricing and other information is based on the latest information available and is
subject to change. Supplier reserves the right to cancel this Quote and Customer purchase orders arising from pricing errors. Taxes and/or
freight charges listed on this Quote are only estimates. The final amounts shall be stated on the relevant invoice. Additional freight charges
will be applied if Customer requests expedited shipping. Please indicate any tax exemption status on your purchase order and send your tax
exemption certificate to Tax_Department@dell.com or ARSalesTax@emc.com, as applicable.

Governing Terms: This Quote is subject to: (a) a separate written agreement between Customer or Customer’s affiliate and Supplier or a
Supplier´s affiliate to the extent that it expressly applies to the products and/or services in this Quote or, to the extent there is no such
agreement, to the applicable set of Dell’s Terms of Sale (available at www.dell.com/terms or www.dell.com/oemterms), or for cloud/as-a-
Service offerings, the applicable cloud terms of service (identified on the Offer Specific Terms referenced below); and (b) the terms
referenced herein (collectively, the “Governing Terms”). Different Governing Terms may apply to different products and services on this
Quote. The Governing Terms apply to the exclusion of all terms and conditions incorporated in or referred to in any documentation submitted
by Customer to Supplier.

Supplier Software Licenses and Services Descriptions: Customer’s use of any Supplier software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, or in the absence of accompanying terms, the applicable terms posted on www.Dell.com/eula. Descriptions and
terms for Supplier-branded standard services are stated at www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global or for certain infrastructure products at
www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm.

Offer-Specific, Third Party and Program Specific Terms: Customer’s use of third-party software is subject to the license terms that
accompany the software. Certain Supplier-branded and third-party products and services listed on this Quote are subject to additional,
specific terms stated on www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms (“Offer Specific Terms”).

In case of Resale only: Should Customer procure any products or services for resale, whether on standalone basis or as part of a solution,
Customer shall include the applicable software license terms, services terms, and/or offer-specific terms in a written agreement with the end-
user and provide written evidence of doing so upon receipt of request from Supplier.

In case of Financing only: If Customer intends to enter into a financing arrangement (“Financing Agreement”) for the products and/or
services on this Quote with Dell Financial Services LLC or other funding source pre-approved by Supplier (“FS”), Customer may issue its
purchase order to Supplier or to FS. If issued to FS, Supplier will fulfill and invoice FS upon confirmation that: (a) FS intends to enter into a
Financing Agreement with Customer for this order; and (b) FS agrees to procure these items from Supplier. Notwithstanding the Financing
Agreement, Customer’s use (and Customer’s resale of and the end-user’s use) of these items in the order is subject to the applicable
governing agreement between Customer and Supplier, except that title shall transfer from Supplier to FS instead of to Customer. If FS
notifies Supplier after shipment that Customer is no longer pursuing a Financing Agreement for these items, or if Customer fails to enter into
such Financing Agreement within 120 days after shipment by Supplier, Customer shall promptly pay the Supplier invoice amounts directly to
Supplier.

Customer represents that this transaction does not involve: (a) use of U.S. Government funds; (b) use by or resale to the U.S. Government;
or (c) maintenance and support of the product(s) listed in this document within classified spaces. Customer further represents that this
transaction does not require Supplier’s compliance with any statute, regulation or information technology standard applicable to a U.S.
Government procurement.

For certain products shipped to end users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to Customer’s invoice. Supplier
encourages customers to dispose of electronic equipment properly.

Electronically linked terms and descriptions are available in hard copy upon request.

Page 5
 

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
 

mailto:Tax_Department@dell.com
mailto:ARSalesTax@emc.com
http://www.dell.com/terms
http://www.dell.com/oemterms
http://www.dell.com/eula
http://www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global
http://www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm
http://www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms






Fortra, LLC 11095 Viking Dr, Suite 100, Eden Prairie, MN 55344

Confidential & Proprietary
Page  of 1 3

Prepared by   Aubrey Murphy

Expires on    February 29, 2024

Company Information Customer Information
Bill To Company City of Lakewood Customer City of Lakewood

Primary Billing Contact Primary Customer Contact

Name Robin Frenette Name Andrew Cator

Phone 562-417-5538 Phone 714-716-6985

Email rfrenett@lakewoodcity.org Email helpdesk@lakewoodcity.org

Title IT Services Manager Title

Bill To Address 5050 Clark Ave Ship To Address 5050 Clark Ave

City Lakewood City Lakewood

State California State California

Postal Code 90712 Postal Code 90712

Country United States Country United States

  Order Summary
Order Number Q-103527 Payment Terms Net 30

Initial Duration 12 Months Billing Frequency Annual

Renewal Duration 12 Months Currency USD

Effective Date Last signature date below Auto-Renew Yes

Sales Tax Prices shown are exclusive of all local, state, federal, foreign, or value-added taxes.

  Subscription Details

Renewal Subscription: Alert Logic MDR Subscription Term: Start Date: March 1, 2024 End Date: February 28, 2025

 Solution Name Subscription Type Quantity Unit of Measure

TM8C32GB - Threat Manager Appliance Recurring 1.00 Each

Professional Recurring 50.00 Nodes

Essentials Recurring 250.00 Nodes

Log usage not to exceed aggregated average of 100MB/day/node in any calendar quarter.



Fortra, LLC 11095 Viking Dr, Suite 100, Eden Prairie, MN 55344

Confidential & Proprietary
Page  of 2 3

  Subscription Fees
The Subscription listed herein shall be included under the  Current Subscription as of the Effective Date of this Order Form, or if there is an Bill To Company's

existing subscription, it will amend and replace the  Current Subscription.Bill To Company's

-----------------------------------A

One-Time Fees Annual Fees
Total Fees for Subscription: $0.00 $37,800.00

----
Total Contract Value: $37,800

-----
 Subscription Terms & Conditions

The signatory of this Order Form agrees that: (i) he/she is authorized to make the purchase shown above on behalf of the 'Bill To' entity, and such entity will

pay for the Products and Services as set forth in this Order Form; and (ii) this Order Form is incorporated into and is governed by the Master Terms and

Conditions located at https://www.alertlogic.com/company/legal/terms unless the parties have separately executed an agreement (e.g., a Reseller or Master

Service Provider agreement) that governs this Order Form.

-----
Initial Subscription Term

The service term begins on the Service Commencement Date and will continue for the Initial Duration noted above. If the Effective Date of the Order Form is

on or before the 15th day of the applicable calendar month, then the Service Commencement Date means the first day of the subsequent calendar month. If

the Effective Date of the Order Form is after the 15th day of the applicable calendar month, then the Service Commencement Date means the first day of the

second subsequent calendar month.

Renewal Term

This Order form will automatically renew for the Renewal Subscription Duration noted above (each, a 'Renewal Term' and, together with the 'Initial Term', the

'Subscription Term'), beginning on the 1st calendar day after expiration of the then-current Initial or Renewal Term, unless terminated in accordance with the

provisions in the MTC.

Billing Terms

All invoices will be issued on or about the 1st business day of a calendar month. Fees for Services will be invoiced upfront according to the Billing Frequency

noted above, except for the initial invoice for Services which will be sent on or about the 1st business day of the calendar month subsequent to the Service

Commencement Date. Fees for One-Time Fees will be invoiced on the first invoice after the Effective Date of the relevant Order Form or the charges are

incurred. Usage or overage fees, if applicable, will be invoiced in arrears on the first invoice subsequent to the charges being incurred.

  Additional Terms

Subscription Term 03/01/2024 - 02/28/2025 Annually

 Description of Services

The Solution Documentation for the Solution listed above along with the Parties' respective roles and responsibilities are set forth in

https://www.alertlogic.com/docs/Alert-Logic-Threat-Management-Master-Service-Description.pdf



Fortra, LLC 11095 Viking Dr, Suite 100, Eden Prairie, MN 55344

Confidential & Proprietary
Page  of 3 3

 Signatures

In witness whereof, the Parties have executed this Order Form as of the date set forth below:

Bill To Company:

\s1\

Fortra, LLC Signature:

\s2\

Name:
\n1\

Name:
\n2\

Title:
\t1\

Title:
\t2\

Date:
\d1\

Date:
\d2\





 









 







1 

 
 

2024 
Legislative Platform 

 
 
Purpose Statement 
The Lakewood City Council recognizes the need for an active state and federal legislative 
program to protect the city’s interests in Sacramento and Washington, D.C.  The 2024 
Legislative Platform provides a framework for the City of Lakewood’s legislative program.  
Adopted annually, the Legislative Platform is the foundation of a focused advocacy strategy and 
serves as a reference guide for legislative positions and objectives that provide direction for the 
City Council and staff throughout the year. 
 
Legislative Program 
 
Te primary objective of the Legislative Platform is for the City Council to adopt official city 
positions on clearly stated legislative issues.  By doing this, the legislative approval process is 
streamlined by eliminating the need for repetitive concurrence and direction from the City 
Council on previously approved issues. The Legislative Platform is developed and maintained 
using the goals and objectives of the City Council, a review of legislative priorities from the 
League of California Cities, League’s Los Angeles Division, California Contract Cities 
Association and other partner agencies (see below), input from City Council and staff, research 
of current law and pending legislation, as well as discussions with local legislative staff and the 
City’s legislative advocates.   
 
Federal and state legislative proposals and policies consistent with the Legislative Platform may 
be supported by the City. Policies and proposals inconsistent with this Legislative Platform may 
be opposed by the City.  For proposed legislation, either consistent with the City’s Legislative 
Platform or consistent with legislative positions the City has taken in the past, City staff shall be 
authorized to prepare position letters with the Mayor’s authorization.  Items not addressed in the 
city’s Legislative Platform may require further direction from the Intergovernmental Relations 
Committee and/or the City Council.   
 
Legislative priorities may only address issues directly relevant to or impacting the provision of 
municipal services.  Generally, the City will not address matters that are not pertinent to the 
City’s local government services.   
 
Organizations whose legislative programs the City follows: 
 
Federal 

 American Planning Association 
 American Public Works Association 
 American Water Works Association 
 International Council of Shopping Centers 

 National Recreation and Parks Association 
 National League of Cities 
 National Association of Telecommunications Officers and Advisors (NATOA) 
 U.S. Conference of Mayors 



2 

State 
 Association of California Water Agencies 
 California Association of Local Economic Development 
 California Building Officials 

 California Contract Cities Association (CCCA) 
 California Municipal Revenue and Tax Association 
 California Municipal Utilities Association 
 California Park & Recreation Society 
 CalCities 

 
Regional 

 Central Basin Water Association 
 Coalition for Practical Regulation 
 Gateway Cities Council of Governments (Gateway COG) 
 Gateway Water Management Authority 
 Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department 
 Metropolitan Transportation Authority 

 Southern California Chapter of NATOA 
 Southeast Los Angeles Workforce Development Board 
 Southeast Water Coalition 
 Southern California Association of Governments 
 California Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
 Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control District 

 
Program Goals and Strategies 

Program Goals: 
I. Advocate the City’s legislative interests at the Federal, State and County 

levels. 
 

II. Inform and share information with our Legislators, City Council and staff 
on the legislative process and key issues and legislation that could have a 
potential impact on the City. 
 

III. Serve as an active participant with other local governments, the League 
of California Cities, regional agencies such as CCCA, Gateway COG and 
other local professional organizations on legislative/regulatory issues that 
are important to the City and region. 
 

IV.  Seek grant and funding assistance for City projects, services and 
programs to enhance infrastructure and services for the community. 

 
Strategies: 

I. Communicate legislative positions on proposed Federal, State and 
County legislation, measures, initiatives and governmental regulations. 
 

a. Work with City departments and legislative advocates to develop 
positions on proposed legislative measures. 

 
b. City staff will review the positions and analysis done by the 

League of California Cities, legislative advocates’ feedback, and 
other local government/professional associations in formulating 
the City’s positions. 

 



3 

c. The City will take positions only on proposals that clearly impact 
the City or pose a threat to local control. 

 
d. Actively track key bills through the legislative process, utilizing the 

City’s advocacy services, various legislative websites and other 
government and professional associations. 

 
e. Work cooperatively with other cities, associations and the League 

of California Cities on advocating the city’s legislative positions. 
 

f. As necessary, participate in the drafting and amending of 
proposed federal and state measures that have the potential to 
significantly impact the City. 

 
g. Meet with legislators and their representatives, as well as other 

federal, state and county government officials on a regular basis, 
to discuss local government issues, proposed legislation, requests 
for funding assistance and City projects, programs and services. 

 
II. Seek federal, state and county funding through earmarks, grants and 

other discretionary funding for City projects, services and programs. 
 

a. Identify City projects for potential submittal for federal earmark 
consideration.  Develop a submittal packet for legislators that 
provides funding need and project information. 

 
b. Provide information to City departments on potential grant funding 

opportunities and recognition programs. 
 

c. Advocate and request letters of support for grant applications that 
are being considered for federal, state and county funding. 

 
III. Share information with the City Council, staff and the community on 

legislative issues. 
 

a. Work closely with department heads and staff to determine their 
legislative priorities and funding needs for the upcoming legislative 
session. 

 
b. Provide updates on legislative issues to the Council and 

departments throughout the year. 
 

c. Educate the community in the City’s advocacy efforts on 
legislative issues and funding requests. 

 



4 

2024 LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM 
 

I. Local Control 
1. Support the provision of municipal services through contracting. 

 
2. Support legislation that preserves and enhances local control. 

 
3. Oppose preemption of local authority whether by county, state or federal 

legislation or ballot measures. 
 

II. Municipal Finance 
4. Support legislation that further protects local government revenue from being 

taken, confiscated, shifted, diverted or otherwise used to fund state government 
operations and responsibilities. 

 
5. Support legislation that allows cities to collect their “fair share” of sales tax 

allocation on internet or other remote transactions. 
 

6. Support legislation that reforms the local government financing structure to 
create long term stability for public services, facilities and future city growth. 

 
7. Support continued funding for the items below: 

 
a. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program 

 
b. Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) program 

 
 

c. Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) program 
 

d.   Public, Educational, and Government (PEG) community access television 
 

8. Oppose legislation that would impose state mandated costs for which there is no 
guarantee or realistic expectation of local reimbursement or offsetting benefits. 

 
9. Oppose legislation that would preempt or reduce local discretion over locally-

imposed taxes. 
 

10. Oppose legislation that changes the sales or property tax collection method or 
formula that would result in less overall tax revenue to local governments. 

 
11. Oppose legislation that threatens a local government’s right to receive 

compensation for use of its public right of way. 
 

12. Oppose any effort to eliminate, or cap, the tax-exempt status of municipal bonds, 
one of the few tools left for local governments to finance large capital projects. 

 
III. Public Safety 

13. Support legislation and funding that promote enhanced law enforcement services 
in the community. 

 
14. Support legislation that provides for greater protection to victims of crime and 

accountability in criminal prosecution and sentencing. 
 



5 

15. Support legislative efforts to address the negative impacts of AB 109, Proposition 
47 and Proposition 57 on local governments and provide local law enforcement 
with the appropriate tools to reduce criminal activity. 

 
16. Support legislation that maintains public safety and provides additional tools and 

resources to address challenges such as homelessness, mental health, and drug 
rehabilitation. 

 
17. Support legislation that encourages legislators to coordinate and consult closely 

with law enforcement agencies prior to introducing legislation that affects public 
safety. 

 
18. Support reasonable criminal justice reform measures that are inclusive of 

concerns from prosecutors, victims’ rights groups, and law enforcement agencies 
and do not hinder law enforcement’s ability to protect the community. 

 
19. Support programs that help ensure public safety through the assistance and 

rehabilitation of individuals challenged with mental and/or substance abuse 
illnesses and increase awareness and training opportunities. 

 
20. Support legislation that provides funding to local agencies for emergency 

planning, disaster training, preparedness, prevention, protection, mitigation, 
response, recovery and resiliency to disasters, biological and environmental 
threats. 

 
21. Support legislation and funding that promote traffic and pedestrian safety. 

 
22. Support legislation that criminalizes illegal behavior in cyberspace and on social 

media.   
 

IV. Economic Development and Local Land Use 
23. Support legislation that encourages sustainable economic development for cities 

to create jobs and improve the economy. 
 

24. Support legislation that strengthens local control for land use and zoning 
regulations. 

 
25. Support legislation that returns local governments’ ability to enact property tax 

increment financing or other redevelopment tools. 
 

26. Support training and development initiatives and funding that support the 
collaboration between community partners, including, but not limited to non-
profits, school and community college districts and the workforce development 
board. 

 
27. Support measures that support the City’s continued efforts to retain and promote 

local businesses and for removal of regulations that impose excessive 
requirements or restrictions that hinder the success of these enterprises. 

 
28. Support legislation that will restore funding mechanisms to promote continued 

economic development, including initiatives to provide financing for business 
assistance loans and infrastructure improvements. 

 



6 

29. Support legislation preserving the city’s interest in telecommunication, broadband 
and infrastructure operations.  

 
30. Oppose efforts to require additional CEQA review and process requirements that 

delay projects and increase costs. 
 

31. Oppose legislation that seeks to limit or eliminate municipal authority to regulate 
street or sidewalk vendors. 

 
V. Housing and Homelessness 

32. Support legislation that seeks to address the inequitable allocation of property 
taxes to “No and Low” property tax cities.  This is critically important as the State 
attempts to address the housing crisis. 

 
33. Support legislation that provides flexibility, support and resources to cities to 

assist with the development of affordable housing options and programs for all 
income levels in the community. 

 
34. Support incentives for cities to create regional and collaborative solutions to 

address homelessness. 
 
35. Support the expansion of conservatorship laws allowing for increased 

guardianship control and health supervision of those suffering from mental 
illness; and recognizes mental illness and addiction as a contributor to chronic 
homelessness. 

 
36. Support legislation and funding from the county, state and federal government for 

expanded outreach teams in collaboration with law enforcement, first responders, 
and the county’s health and mental health departments for those affected by 
homelessness and mental health issues. 

 
37. Support direct Measure H funding on an annual basis for cities like Lakewood 

that are required to contribute additional sales tax. 
 
38. Oppose legislation that seeks to convert the Regional Housing Needs Allocation 

(RHNA) process from a planning process to a production standard. 
 
39.  Oppose legislation that penalizes a city or local government if the units identified 

in RHNA are not constructed. 
 
40. Oppose efforts and legislation that propose to limit public engagement, design 
and environmental review related to housing projects. 

 
41. Oppose legislation that would remove local control, allow for irresponsible 
housing development and interfere with protection of established residential 
neighborhoods.  

 
42. Support and pursue the repeal of state laws that affect local control on housing 
and land use. 

 
V. Infrastructure 

43. Support legislation that provides adequate and consistent funding to support 
acquisition, development, operation and maintenance of recreation services and 
facilities. 



7 

44. Support legislation that provides ongoing and sustainable transportation 
infrastructure funding, including funds for the preservation and maintenance of 
streets and roads. 

 
45. Support legislation that appropriates state funds to local and regional projects for 

transportation projects, such as the West Santa Ana Branch transit corridor 
project. 

 
46. Support legislation that provides funding for water, wastewater, and stormwater 

infrastructure; flood prevention, water resources planning and development; and 
water quality improvement. 

 
47. Support development of reasonable policies, strategies and programs to protect 

the environment, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, increase energy efficiency 
and increase the use of alternative/renewable energy sources. 

 
48. Support legislation that allocates cap and trade auction revenue to local 

governments. 
 
49. Support legislation that bridges the digital divide as equitable access to 

information and communication technologies are becoming increasingly essential 
for everyday life.  

 
50. Support legislation and park bond measures that provide per capita grants to 

local governments to fund parks and capital improvements, as well as recreation 
programs that enhance the quality of life for Lakewood residents. 

 
51. Support legislation that provides funding for the rehabilitation, development, and 

capital improvements of local parks and community facilities. 
 
52.  Support regional planning and investments in electric vehicle charging 

infrastructure (both public and private) and zero-emissions equipment through 
robust grants and financial incentives. 

 
53.  Support legislation that supports local control and flexibility to regulate solid 

waste and recyclables. 
 
54.  Support legislation that provides funding for local governments to create 

capacity around current and future State recycling mandates. 
 
55. Oppose unnecessary modifications to the Los Angeles County Flood Control 

conveyance system, including the Los Angeles and San Gabriel Rivers that could 
require properties to purchase federal flood insurance. 

 
56. Oppose Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) flood insurance 

reforms to require properties in residual risk areas, those protected by dams or 
levees, to purchase flood insurance even when the man-made structures are 
certified to provide at least 100-year protection. 

57. Oppose legislation to establish a public goods charg 
e or other permanent statewide tax on water to fund statewide water solutions. 
 
58.  Oppose legislation that directs local transportation funds away from cities. 
 
 



8 

VI. General Government 
59. Support legislation that preserves public, educational, government (PEG) 

television channel funding, and programming support by video service providers, 
such as: payments to local government of franchise fees and PEG fees. 

 
60.. Support reasonable reform of local government pension systems that is 

respectful of local control and local collective bargaining processes. 
 
61. . Support legislation that reforms the workers compensation system to lower 

employer costs while continuing to protect employees. 
 
62 . Support legislation that provides resources to cities to improve disaster 

preparedness, recovery and resiliency. 
 
63. . Oppose legislation that usurps local government’s authority to restrict or 

regulate the sale, manufacture and use of alcohol, medical marijuana 
dispensaries, collectives and cooperatives, and recreational marijuana 
dispensaries or other distribution points. 

 
64. Support legislation for cities to maintain local services and provide relief to local 

residents and businesses, including shoring up funding for the decline in sales 
tax revenue and providing flexibility on funding for cities to continue to provide 
services. 

 
65.  Support legislation that provides funding to local agencies for emergency 

planning, disaster training, preparedness, prevention, protection, mitigation, 
response, recovery and resiliency to disasters, biological and environmental 
threats. 

 
66.  Support legislation that enhances community control of public education. 
 
67.  Oppose policies and legislation that compromise the City’s ability to enforce 
state and local parking ordinances. 
 
68.  Legislation that applies to local governing boards should also equally apply to 

state representatives.   
 

VII.  Social Justice and Equity 
69.  Support legislation and funding that provides residents with equitable access to 

City programs and services. 
 
70. Support legislation and funding for the City and its community partners to 

proactively engage with residents on issues of prejudice, discrimination and 
social justice to promote education, understanding, expanded opportunity and 
acceptance between diverse groups in the community, making Lakewood a 
welcome place for everyone. 

 









CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH TETRA TECH, INC. 
 
 
This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and effective as of 
February 27, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the City of Lakewood, a 
California municipal corporation, (the “City”) and Tetra Tech, Inc., a California 
corporation (“Consultant”). In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set 
forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. TERM 
This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall remain and continue 
in effect until December 31, 2024, and may be renewed by City with the concurrence of 
Consultant for any successive one or two-year term, unless sooner terminated 
pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

2. SERVICES 
Consultant shall perform the services described and set forth in Consultant’s Proposal 
attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Services”), incorporated herein as though set forth in 
full. 
 

3. PERFORMANCE 
Consultant shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of Consultant’s 
ability, experience, and talent, perform all tasks described herein. Consultant shall 
employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons 
engaged in providing similar services as are required of Consultant under this 
Agreement. 
 

4. CITY MANAGEMENT 
The City Manager or designee shall represent the City in all matters pertaining to the 
administration of this Agreement. 
 

5. PAYMENT 
A. The City agrees to pay Consultant for Services satisfactorily performed in 
accordance with the fees set forth in Exhibit A, in an amount not to exceed 
$68,000. 

 

B. Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to those set forth 
herein, unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by 
the City Manager or designee. Consultant shall be compensated for any additional 
services in the amounts and in the manner as agreed to in writing by the City and 
Consultant at the time the City’s written authorization is given to Consultant for the 
performance of said services. 
 

C. Consultant will submit invoices monthly for actual Services performed. Payment 
shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice as to all non- 
disputed fees. If the City disputes any of Consultant's Services or fees, it shall give 
written notice to Consultant within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice of any 



2 
 

disputed fees set forth on the invoice. Any final payment under this Agreement 
shall be made within forty-five (45) days of receipt of an invoice therefor. 

 

6. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT WITHOUT CAUSE 
A. The City may at any time, for any reason, without cause, suspend or terminate 
this Agreement, or any portion hereof, by giving at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to Consultant. Upon receipt of said notice, Consultant shall 
immediately cease all Services under this Agreement, unless the notice provides 
otherwise. If the City suspends or terminates a portion of this Agreement, such 
suspension or termination shall not make void or invalidate the remainder of this 
Agreement. 
 

B. In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this section, the City shall 
pay to Consultant the actual value of the Services performed up to the time of 
termination, unless the City disputes any of the Services performed or fees. Upon 
termination of the Agreement pursuant to this section, Consultant will submit an 
invoice to the City pursuant to Section 5. 

 

7. DEFAULT OF CONSULTANT 
If the City determines that Consultant is in default in the performance of any of the terms 
or conditions of this Agreement, the City shall serve Consultant a written notice of the 
default. Consultant shall have seven (7) days after service of said notice to cure the 
default. In the event that Consultant fails to cure the default within such period of time 
or fails to present the City with a written plan for the diligent cure of default if such default 
cannot be cured within seven days, the City shall have the right, notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement without further notice 
and without prejudice to any other remedy to which it may be entitled at law, in equity 
or under this Agreement. The City shall also have the right to offset against the amount 
of any fees due to Consultant any costs incurred by the City as a result of Consultant’s 
default. 
 

8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
A. Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to tasks, 
costs, expenses, receipts, and other such information required by the City that 
relate to the performance of Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall 
maintain adequate records of Services provided in sufficient detail to permit an 
evaluation of Services. All such records shall be maintained in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and shall be clearly identified and readily 
accessible. Consultant shall provide free access to the representatives of the City or 
its designees at reasonable times to such books and records; shall give the City 
the right to examine and audit said books and records; shall permit the City to 
make transcripts or copies therefrom as necessary; and shall allow inspection of all 
Services, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to this Agreement. 
Such records, together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for a period 
of three (3) years after receipt of final payment. 

 

B. Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this 
Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, computer 
files, surveys, notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the 
Services shall become the sole property of the City and may be used, reused, or 



3 
 

otherwise disposed of by the City without the permission of Consultant. With 
respect to computer files, Consultant shall make available to the City, at the 
Consultant's office and upon reasonable written request by the City, the necessary 
computer software and hardware for purposes of accessing, compiling, transferring, 
copying and/or printing computer files. Consultant hereby grants to the City all 
right, title, and interest, including any copyright, in and to the documents, designs, 
drawings, maps, models, computer files, surveys, notes, and other documents 
prepared by Consultant in the course of providing the Services under this 
Agreement. 
 

9. INDEMNIFICATION AND DEFENSE 
A. Indemnity. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the City and any and all of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
and/or volunteers (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees and costs, 
caused in whole or in part by the acts, errors, or omissions of Consultant, its 
officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, or sub-Consultants (or any agency or 
individual that Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of 
Services under this Agreement. 
 

B. Duty to Defend. 
In the event the City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers are 
made a party to any claim, action, lawsuit, or other adversarial proceeding 
(“Action”) arising from the performance of the Services under this Agreement, 
whether or not Consultant is named in such Action, and upon demand by the City, 
Consultant shall defend the City at Consultant’s sole cost, or at the City’s option, to 
reimburse the City for its costs of defense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and 
costs incurred in the defense. 
 

C. Payment by the City for Services is not a condition precedent to enforcement of 
this section. Consultant’s duty to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City 
shall not extend to the City’s sole or active negligence. In the event of any dispute 
between Consultant and the City as to whether liability arises from the sole or 
active negligence of the City or its officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or 
volunteers, Consultant will be obligated to pay for the City’s defense until such time 
as a final judgment has been entered adjudicating the City as solely or actively 
negligent. Consultant will not be entitled in the absence of such a determination to 
any reimbursement of defense costs including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees, 
expert fees and costs of litigation. 

 

10. INSURANCE 
Consultant shall maintain prior to the beginning of and for the duration of this 
Agreement insurance coverage as specified in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a 
part of this Agreement. 



4 
 

 

11. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT 
A. Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the City a wholly independent 
Consultant and/or independent contractor. The personnel performing the services 
under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under 
Consultant's exclusive direction and control. Neither the City nor any of its officers, 
employees, or agents shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of 
Consultant's officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or sub-Consultants, 
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not at any time or in any 
manner represent that Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors, or sub-Consultants are in any manner officers, employees, 
or agents of the City. Consultant shall not incur or have the power to incur any 
debt, obligation, or liability whatever against the City, or bind the City in any 
manner. 
 

B. No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement. Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in 
the Agreement, the City shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to 
Consultant for performing services hereunder for the City. The City shall not be 
liable for compensation or indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness 
arising out of performing services hereunder. Consultant shall secure, at its sole 
expense, and be responsible for any and all payment of Income Tax, Social 
Security, State Disability Insurance Compensation, Unemployment Compensation, 
and other payroll deductions for Consultant and its officers, agents, and 
employees, and all business licenses, if any are required, in connection with the 
services to be performed hereunder. Consultant shall indemnify and hold the City 
harmless from any and all taxes, assessments, penalties, and interest asserted 
against the City by reason of the independent Consultant relationship created by 
this Agreement. Consultant further agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless 
from any failure of Consultant to comply with the applicable worker’s compensation 
laws. The City shall have the right to offset against the amount of any fees due to 
Consultant under this Agreement as a result of Consultant’s failure to promptly pay 
to the City any reimbursement or indemnification arising under this paragraph. 

 

C. In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, subcontractor, or sub-
Consultant of Consultant providing Services under this Agreement claims or is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee 
of the City, Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City for the 
payment of any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on 
behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, subcontractors, or sub-Consultants, 
as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, 
which would otherwise be the responsibility of the City. 
 

D. Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law 
or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its employees, agents, 
subcontractors, and sub-Consultants providing service under this Agreement shall 
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by the City, including but not 



5 
 

limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee of the City and entitlement to 
any contribution to be paid by City for employer contribution and/or employee 
contributions for PERS benefits. 

 

12. LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
Consultant shall keep itself informed of State and Federal laws and regulations which 
in any manner affect those employed by it or in any way affect the performance of 
Services pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall at all times observe and comply 
with all such laws and regulations. The City and its officials, officers, employees, and 
agents, shall not be liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of Consultant to 
comply with this Section. 
 

13. UNDUE INFLUENCE 
Consultant declares and warrants that no undue influence or pressure was used 
against or in concert with any officer or employee of the City in connection with the 
award, terms or implementation of this Agreement, including any method of coercion, 
confidential financial arrangement, or financial inducement. No officer or employee of 
the City has or will receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from Consultant, or 
from any officer, employee or agent of Consultant, in connection with this Agreement 
or any Services to be conducted as a result of this Agreement. Violation of this section 
shall be a material breach of this Agreement entitling the City to any and all remedies 
at law or in equity. 
 

14. NO BENEFIT TO ARISE TO LOCAL EMPLOYEES 
No member, officer, or employee of the City, or their designees or agents, and no 
public official who exercises authority over or responsibilities with respect to the 
Services during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct 
or indirect, in any Agreement or sub-agreement, or the proceeds thereof, for Services 
to be performed under this Agreement. 
 

15. RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
A. All information gained by Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without the City's prior 
written authorization, unless the information is clearly public. Consultant, its officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors, or sub-Consultants, shall not without written 
authorization from the City Manager or designee, or unless requested by the City’s 
attorney, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, 
response to interrogatories, or other information concerning the Services performed 
under this Agreement or relating to the City. Response to a subpoena or court order 
shall not be considered “voluntary” provided Consultant gives the City notice of such 
court order or subpoena. 
 

B. Consultant shall promptly notify the City should Consultant, its officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors, and/or sub-Consultants be served with any 
summons, complaint, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, 
request for admissions, or other discovery request (“Discovery”), court order, or 
subpoena from any person or party regarding this Agreement and the Services 
performed hereunder or the City, unless the City is a party to any lawsuit, arbitration, 
or administrative proceeding connected to such Discovery, or unless Consultant is 
prohibited by law from informing the City of such Discovery. The City retains the right, 



6 
 

but has no obligation, to represent Consultant and/or be present at any deposition, 
hearing, or similar proceeding as allowed by law. Unless the City is a party to the 
lawsuit, arbitration, or administrative proceeding and is adverse to Consultant in such 
proceeding, Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with the City and to provide the 
opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consultant. 
However, the City's right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right 
by the City to control, direct, or rewrite said response, or that the City has an obligation 
to review any such response or verifies any response it has reviewed. 
 

16. NOTICES 
Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other party under this 
Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) 
delivery by a reputable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal 
Express, which provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mail by 
the United States Postal Service, certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, addressed to the address of the party as set forth below or at any other 
address as that party may later designate by notice: 
 

To the City: City of Lakewood 5050 Clark Avenue 
 Lakewood, CA 90712 
 Attention: Director of Water Resources 
 

To Consultant: Tetra Tech, Inc. 
 17885 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 500 
 Irvine, CA 92614-5227 
 Attention: Tom Epperson, PE 
 

17. ASSIGNMENT 
Consultant shall not assign the performance of this Agreement, nor any part thereof, nor 
any monies due hereunder, without prior written consent of the City. Before retaining or 
contracting with any subcontractor or sub-Consultant for any services under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide the City with the identity of the proposed 
subcontractor or sub-Consultant, a copy of the proposed written contract between 
Consultant and such subcontractor or sub-Consultant which shall include and indemnity 
provision similar to the one provided herein and identifying the City as an indemnified 
party, or an incorporation of the indemnity provision provided herein, and proof that such 
proposed subcontractor or sub-Consultant carries insurance at least equal to that required 
by this Agreement or obtain a written waiver from the City for such insurance. 
 

18. LICENSES 
At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall have in full force and effect 
all licenses required of it by law for the performance of the Services described in this 
Agreement. 
 

19. GOVERNING LAW 
The City and Consultant understand and agree that the laws of the State of California 
shall govern the rights, obligations, duties, and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement 
and also govern the interpretation of this Agreement. Any litigation concerning this 
Agreement shall take place in the municipal, superior, or federal district court with 
jurisdiction over the City. 



7 
 

 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties relating to the 
obligations of the parties described in this Agreement. All prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements, oral or written and 
pertaining to the subject of this Agreement or with respect to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect. Each party is entering into this 
Agreement based solely upon the representations set forth herein and upon each party’s 
own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems material. 
 

21. AMENDMENTS 
Any amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by the parties hereto, or 
their respective successors and assigns, in order to be valid. 
 

22. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
In the event that litigation is brought by any party in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the opposing party all costs and 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the prevailing party in the 
exercise of any of its rights or remedies hereunder or the enforcement of any of the terms, 
conditions, or provisions hereof. 
 

23. CONSTRUCTION 
The parties hereto have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this 
Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises with 
respect to this Agreement, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the 
parties and in accordance with its fair meaning. There shall be no presumption or burden of 
proof favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions 
of this Agreement. 
 

24. WAIVER 
The delay or failure of any party at any time to require performance or compliance by the 
other of any of its obligations or agreements shall in no way be deemed a waiver of those 
rights to require such performance or compliance. No waiver of any provision of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized 
representative of the party against whom enforcement of a waiver is sought. The waiver of 
any right or remedy in respect to any occurrence or event shall not be deemed a waiver of 
any right or remedy in respect to any other occurrence or event, nor shall any waiver 
constitute a continuing waiver. 
 

25. SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
unenforceable in any circumstance, such determination shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or of the offending provision in 
any other circumstance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the value of this Agreement, 
based upon the substantial benefit of the bargain for any party, is materially impaired, 
which determination made by the presiding court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction 
shall be binding, then both parties agree to substitute such provision(s) through good faith 
negotiations.



8 
 

 
26. COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original. All counterparts shall be construed together and constitute one 
agreement. 
 
27. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT  
The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties warrant and represent that 
they have the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of said parties and have the 
authority to bind the parties to the provisions of this Agreement.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
as of the Effective Date. 
 
[If Consultant is a corporation, two signatures are required: Signature 1 – the Chairperson of the Board, 
the President, or any Vice President; Signature 2 – the secretary, any Assistant secretary, the Chief 
Financial Officer, or any Assistant Treasurer (Corp. Code § 313).] 

 
 
 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD  CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
____________________________ ____________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
______________________ _________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Attorney 
 
Attachments:  Exhibit A Consultant Proposal 
    Exhibit B Insurance Requirements



9 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
February 6, 2024 
 
 
Anthony Manzano 
Assistant Director of Water Resources 
City of Lakewood 
5050 Clark Avenue 
Lakewood, CA 90712 
 

Reference: Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services for Preliminary Water Main 
Replacement Project (Portions of Del Amo Blvd, Paramount Blvd, South Street, and Palo Verde Ave) 
 

Dear Mr. Manzano, 
 

Per your email dated January 18, 2024, and our supplemental Teams conversation on 
January 22, 2024, the City is requesting Tetra Tech provide a proposal to assess existing 
pipe conditions and prepare preliminary plans for the relocation of select water mains within 
portions of Del Amo Boulevard, Paramount Boulevard, and South Street. Many of the 
existing water mains within these streets are aging, nearing or have exceeded their useful 
life, requiring replacement to maintain the integrity of the City’s potable water system. 
The City has asked Tetra Tech to (1) assess the pipelines within these streets based on 
age, leakage, and pipe material and determine which need to be replaced; and (2) prepare 
a set of preliminary plans for the selected water mains. This letter proposal is for the 
following scope of work items: 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
Task No. 1: Project Management 
At the start of the project, Tetra Tech will hold a “kickoff” meeting with City staff to discuss 
the scope and parameters to complete the work. We have included one (1) additional 
meeting to review the City’s 50% comments before finalizing the plans. We have assumed 
each meeting will be one (1) hour and be conducted via telephone conference. 
This task also includes project coordination, schedule and budget monitoring, quality 
assurance review, and contract administration. We will prepare and submit monthly invoices 
along with project summary letters. 
 

Task No. 2: Water Main Assessments 
As part of the water main assessments, Tetra Tech will review City-provided data on 
pipeline age, material, and leakage rates. Based on the atlas maps provided by the City, 
there are about 20,000 linear feet of 4-inch to 20-inch diameter pipe to be assessed within 
the project area. We will evaluate each pipe segment and identify if some of the pipelines 
have recently been replaced per available record plans. We will present our 
recommendations in a short Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum (PDTM), 
delineating our findings in spreadsheet format. After the City’s review of the PDTM and 
direction/confirmation on which water mains to replace, Tetra Tech will proceed with 
preparing the preliminary design plans. A table of the linear footage is presented on the 
following page. 



10 

 

Street Name Limits 
Pipe Size 

(in) 
Existing Material 

Length 
(ft) 

Del Amo Blvd East of Maybank 8 PVC 100 

Del Amo Blvd Deeboyar Crossing 10 STL 100 

Paramount 
Blvd 

Del Amo to Yearling 8 PVC 900 

Paramount 
Blvd 

Del Amo to Yearling 16 CCP 1,070 

Paramount 
Blvd 

Yearling to Candlewood 16 CCP 1,600 

Paramount 
Blvd 

Yearling to Candlewood 20 CCP 100 

South St Coke to Hayter 12 AC 260 

South St at Hayter 8 CI 185 

South St Oliva to Lakewood  8 CI 660 

South St Lakewood to Bonfair 10 CI 620 

South St Sunfield to Fidler 8 AC 1,200 

South St Sunfield to Fidler 10 CI 1,200 

South St at Clark  8 STL 120 

South St at Autry 4 CI 115 

South St Autry to Briercrest  10 CI 1,200 

South St at Ocana 8 STL 90 

South St Ocana to Woodruff 8 AC 1,100 

South St Ocana to Woodruff 10 PVC (RW) 1,100 

South St at Woodruff 8 STL 150 

South St Woodruff to Spahn 12 PVC (RW) 900 

South St Woodruff to Spahn 
(in shopping center) 

8 AC 700 

South St Woodruff to Spahn 8 AC 900 

South St Gondar to Canehill 8 AC 650 

South St Snowden to Canehill 8 AC 300 

South St Snowden to Canehill  12 PVC (RW) 300 

South St at Carfax 8 STL 170 

Palo Verde South to Droxford 6 AC 910 

Palo Verde South to Arlington (183rd) 20 CCP 2,700 

Palo Verde at Lindstrom Elementary 14 DIP 100 

South St at Palo Verde  
(in 30” steel casing) 

20 CCP 200 

Total Pipeline Length 19,700 
 

Task No. 3: Preliminary Plans 
Regardless of what percentage of the pipelines will be recommended for replacement based on 
the assessment, the base mapping for the entire project area is still required because there are 
multiple water mains within each street, typically one a water main on each side of the street 



11 

sometimes within frontage roads. Therefore, we will prepare base mapping for the entire project 
area. This work effort will include plotting of street centerline, right-of-way, and wet/dry utilities. 
 
We propose to perform our document research immediately upon issuance of the Notice to 
Proceed. Tetra Tech will obtain the street centerline and right-of-way maps for use in plotting 
the base map. We will determine utilities to contact within the affected streets via USA Dig-Alert. 
Tetra Tech will then prepare letter requests and accompanying exhibits for the project area for 
the City to send to the various utility agencies. The City has offered to submit these requests 
and relay the record information provided to mitigate the document acquisition costs. Lately, we 
have noted this process takes anywhere from 4-6 weeks to receive all relevant information. 
 
After the utilities are plotted, we will perform a field walk to look for visible surface features of 
infrastructure (e.g., valve cans, trench scars, vaults, etc.) as some utility owners do not belong 
to USA Dig Alert, and others respond with only partially completed information. We have 
learned to take the extra steps to verify potential underground infrastructure. Once a 
comprehensive base map has been prepared, we will design a preliminary alignment for the 
various water main replacements in plan view only. We propose to double the viewports on 
each plan sheet to enable more linear feet to be shown and designed on each. The following 
table shows the proposed project plan sheets. 
 

Title 
Number of 

Sheets 

Title Sheet, Vicinity Map, Key Map, Sheet Index, and General Notes 1 

Construction Notes, Abbreviations, Legend, Estimated Quantities 1 

Paramount Blvd – Del Amo Blvd to Candlewood Street 
(includes Deeboyar Ave, Maybank Ave)  

3 

South Street – Lakewood Blvd to Bonfair Ave 
(includes Hayter) 

1 

South Street – Sunfield Ave to Fidler Ave 1 

South Street – Autry Ave to Briercrest Ave 
(includes a portion of Fidler) 

2 

South Street – Ocano Ave to Woodruff Ave 1 

South Street – Woodruff Ave to Spahn Ave 
South Street – Gondar Ave to Canehill Ave 
(includes shopping center) 

1 

Palo Verde Ave – South St to Arlington St (183rd St) 3 

Total Number of Sheets 14 

 
Task No. 4: Construction Cost Estimate 
Tetra Tech will prepare a 50% construction cost estimate for the project with unit costs based on 
recent bids within the area. 
 
Exclusions 
This scope of work excludes topographical survey, section views, preparation of specifications, 
pothole investigations, procurement of permits, traffic control plans, or preparation of Division of 
Drinking Water (DDW) documents. 
 



12 

 
SCHEDULE 

Below are the anticipated milestone submittal dates: 

Milestone Tasks Anticipated Dates 

Kick-Off Meeting February 28, 2024 

Utility Research/Base Map Preparation 
(by City and Tetra Tech) 

February 28, 2024 – April 5, 2024 

PDTM March 13, 2024 

City Review Complete March 20, 2024 

Draft 50% Submittal April 19, 2024 

City Review Complete April 26, 2024 

50% Submittal May 17, 2024 

 
FEE 

We propose to complete this work for a Time and Materials Not-to-Exceed fee of $68,000. 
Attached herewith is the cost and labor hour breakdown for our fee. Tetra Tech will negotiate 
with the City if, after the assessment of the pipelines, the required number of plan sheets is 
reduced. 

We look forward to your positive response to our proposal to provide professional engineering 
services. Should you require additional information or have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me at (949) 809-5156 or via email at tom.epperson@tetratech.com. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Tom Epperson, PE 
Vice President 



11

 

 

Exhibit A 2024 

HOURLY CHARGE RATE AND EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT SCHEDULE 

 
Project Management 

Project Manager 1 
 

$220.00 
Construction 

Construction Project Rep 1 
 

$80.00 
Project Manager 2 $260.00 Construction Project Rep 2 $90.00 
Sr Project Manager $305.00 Sr Const Project Rep 1 $110.00 
Program Manager $340.00 Sr Const Project Rep 2 $120.00 
Principal in Charge $340.00 Construction Manager 1 $170.00 

  Construction Manager 2 $190.00 
  Construction Director $235.00 

Engineers 
 

General & Administrative 
 

Engineering Technician $90.00 Project Assistant 1 $67.00 
Engineer 1 $115.00 Project Assistant 2 $75.00 
Engineer 2 $115.00 Project Administrator $95.00 
Engineer 3 $130.00 Sr Project Administrator $120.00 
Project Engineer 1 $150.00 Sr Graphic Artist $130.00 
Project Engineer 2 $175.00 Technical Writer 1 $97.00 
Sr Engineer 1 $165.00 Technical Writer 2 $124.00 
Sr Engineer 2 $185.00 Sr Technical Writer $155.00 
Sr Engineer 3 $210.00   

Principal Engineer $300.00   

Planners 
 

Information Technology 
 

Planner 1 $104.00 Systems Analyst / Programmer 1 $77.00 
Planner 2 $115.00 Systems Analyst / Programmer 2 $115.00 
Sr Planner 1 $125.00 Sr Sys Analyst / Programmer 1 $130.00 
Sr Planner 2 $151.00 Sr Systems Analyst / Programmer 2 $196.00 
Sr Planner 3 $175.00   

 
Designers & Technicians 

 
Project Accounting 

Project Analyst 1 

 
$90.00 

CAD Technician 1 $65.00 Project Analyst 2 $114.00 
CAD Technician 2 $75.00 Sr Project Analyst $155.00 
CAD Technician 3 $90.00   

CAD Designer $105.00 Reimbursable In-House Costs:  

Sr CAD Designer 1 $125.00 Photo Copies (B&W 8.5”x11”) $0.15/Each 
Sr CAD Designer 2 $150.00 Photo Copies (B&W 11”x17”) $0.40/Each 
CAD Director $155.00 Color Copies (up to 8.5"x11") $2.00/Each 
Survey Tech 1 

 
 
Health & Safety 

$50.00 Color Copies (to 11"x17") 
Compact Discs 
Large format copies 
Mileage-Company Vehicle 

$3.00/Each 
$10/each 
$0.40 S.F. 
$0.80/mile 

H&S Administrator $95.00 Mileage-POV $0.55/mile* 

Sr H&S Administrator $115.00 *current GSA POV mileage rate subject to change 

H&S Manager $145.00  

 
All other direct costs, such as production, special photography, postage, delivery services, overnight mail, printing and any 

other services performed by subconsultant will be billed at cost plus 15%. 

 

 

NOTE: Rates subject to change annually. 

 
 



 

 

    Price Proposal Labor Plan Price Summary / Totals 
7 Resource Task Pricing Totals 68,000 

Lakewood-WM Replacement 
(Del Amo/Paramount/South/Palo Verde) 

Evaluation and Preliminary Design of WM in City of Lakewood

 
 
 

Proj Area >

        Specify Add'l Fees on Setup 0 

        Technology Use Fee  

 Civil/Mech Civil/Mech Civil/Mech Civil/Mech Civil/Mech Civil/Mech Civil/Mech Total Price 68,000 
Submitted to: City of Lakewood 
(Attn: Anthony Manzano) 
 

 
Contract Type: T&M 

         

Pricing by Resource 

C
iv

il/
M

ec
h

 

 P
ri

nc
ip

al
 in

 C
h

ar
g

e 
(T

o
m

 

Ep
pe

rs
o

n
) 

 Sr
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 (

N
e

h
a 

G
aj

ja
r)

 

 Sr
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

2
 

(E
ri

ca
 J

en
ki

n
s)

 

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
n

gi
n

ee
r 

1
 

(J
am

ie
 M

cE
ly

ea
) 

 En
gi

n
ee

r 
2

 (
Ju

st
in

 

C
la

rk
) 

 En
gi

n
ee

r 
1

 (
Sa

n
jiv

 

La
lli

) 

 Sr
 P

ro
je

ct
 A

d
m

in
st

ra
to

r 

(D
ea

n
a 

Es
ca

m
ill

a)
  

 
 
 

Labo
r 

 
 
 
 

ODCs

 
Task Pricing

Totals
 
 

Project Phases / Tasks 

Total 
Labor Hrs 

464  4 32 70 68 214  74 2  67,630 370 68,000 

Task 1 - Project Management 20  
2 
2 

3 
16 

4 
2 

5 
- 

6 
- 

7 
- 

8 
- 5,930 - 5,930 

1.1 Project Meetings (2)  4   2 2     980  980

1.2 Project Management (3  months) 6   6      1,830  1,830

1.3 Quality Assurance 10  2 8      3,120  3,120

Task 2 - Water Main Assessments 39  - 2 17 8 10 - 2 6,345 247 6,592 

2.1 Records Rese arch/Evaluation 12    4 4  4    1,800 247  2,047

2.2 Prepare PDTM and Spreadsheet 24   2 12 4  4   2 4,130  4,130

2.3 Address PDTM Comments with City 3    1  2   415  415

Task 3 - Preliminary Plans 389  2 12 45 52 204 74 - 52,435  123 52,558  

3.1 Utility Research (Coordination with City)  16     4 12   1,980  1,980

3.2 Basemap Preparation 64    12 12 40   8,620  8,620

3.3 Field Visit  48      24 24  5,520 123  5,643

3.4 Prepare Preliminary Design (50 %) 261  2 12 33 36 128 50 - 36,315 - 36,315

A. Title Sheets (2) 13 -   1 4 8   1,705  1,705

B. Preliminary Alignment Sheets (12) 248 - 2 12 32 32 120 50  34,610  34,610

Task 4 - Construction Cost Estimate 16  - 2 6 8 - - - 2,920 - 2,920 

4.1 Prepare 50% Cost Estimate  16   2 6 8     2,920  2,920

Totals 464  4 32 70 68 214 74 2 67,630 370 68,000 



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
Without limiting Consultant’s indemnification of the City, and prior to commencement of 
Services, Consultant shall obtain, provide, and maintain at its own expense during the term of 
this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a form 
satisfactory to the City. If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimum limits shown 
below, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by 
Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to the City. 
 
General liability insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general liability insurance 
with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 00 01, in an amount not 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage. The policy must include contractual liability that has not been 
amended. Any endorsement restricting standard ISO “insured contract” language will not be 
accepted. 
 
Automobile liability insurance. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property damage 
for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with Work to be performed 
under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or rented vehicles, 
in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident. 
 
Consultant shall submit to the City, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of 
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. 
 
Umbrella or excess liability insurance. Consultant shall obtain and maintain an umbrella or 
excess liability insurance policy with limits that will provide bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage liability coverage at least as broad as the primary coverages set forth above, 
including commercial general liability, automobile liability, and employer’s liability. Such policy 
or policies shall include the following terms and conditions: 
 

 A drop-down feature requiring the policy to respond if any primary insurance that would 
otherwise have applied proves to be uncollectible in whole or in part for any reason; 

 Pay on behalf of wording as opposed to reimbursement; 

 Concurrency of effective dates with primary policies; 

 Policies shall “follow form” to the underlying primary policies; and 

 Insureds under primary policies shall also be insureds under the umbrella or excess 
policies. 

 
Other provisions or requirements 
Proof of insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance to the City as evidence 
of the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation endorsement for 
workers’ compensation. Insurance certificates and endorsements must be approved by the 
City’s Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Current certification of insurance 
shall be kept on file with the City at all times during the term of this Agreement. The City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any 
time. 



 

 
Duration of coverage. Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by Consultant, or 
Consultant’s agents, representatives, employees, subcontractors, or sub-Consultants. 
 
Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by Consultant shall be primary and any 
insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the City shall not be required to 
contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a combination of 
primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance shall contain or 
be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a primary and non-
contributory basis for the benefit of the City before the City’s own insurance or self-insurance 
shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured. 
 
The City’s rights of enforcement. In the event any policy of insurance required under this 
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, the City 
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid 
by the City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or the City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, the City may 
immediately terminate this Agreement. 
 
Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company 
currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance or is on 
the List of Approved Surplus Line Insurers in the State of California, with an assigned 
policyholders’ Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in 
accordance with the latest edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved by the 
City’s Risk Manager. 
 
Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against the City, its elected or appointed 
officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against the City, 
and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors or sub-Consultants. 
 
Enforcement of Agreement provisions (non estoppel). Consultant acknowledges and 
agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Consultant of non-
compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the City nor does it 
waive any rights hereunder. 
 
Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained in 
this Agreement are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a 
waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a given 
coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue and is not 
intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or a 
waiver of any type. 
 
Notice of cancellation. Consultant agrees to oblige its insurance agent or broker and insurers 
to provide to the City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for nonpayment for 
which a ten (10) day notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for each required coverage. 
 



 

Additional insured status. General liability policies shall provide or be endorsed to provide 
that the City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be additional 
insureds under such policies. This provision shall also apply to any excess/umbrella liability 
policies. 
 
Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the coverages required herein will 
be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting endorsement of any kind 
that has not been first submitted to the City and approved of in writing. 
 
Separation of insureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds ensuring that Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits of liability. The 
policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 
 
Pass through clause. Consultant agrees to ensure that its subcontractors or sub-Consultants, 
and any other party involved with the Services who is brought onto or involved in the Services 
by Consultant, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and endorsements required of 
Consultant. Consultant agrees to monitor and review all such coverage and assumes all 
responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in conformity with the requirements of 
this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all agreements with Consultants, 
subcontractors, sub-Consultants, and others engaged in the Services will be submitted to the 
City review. 
 
The City’s right to revise specifications. The City reserves the right at any time during the 
term of the Agreement to change the amounts and types of insurance required by giving 
Consultant ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. If such change results in 
substantial additional cost to Consultant, the City and Consultant may renegotiate 
Consultant’s compensation or come to some other agreement to address the additional cost. 
Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 
City. The City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be eliminated, lowered, 
or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to comply with these 
specifications unless approved by the City. 
 
Timely notice of claims. Consultant shall give the City prompt and timely notice of claims made 
or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Consultant’s performance under this 
Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required liability 
policies. 
 
Additional insurance. Consultant shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and 
expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary for its 
proper protection and prosecution of the Services.  











 

 






	2024-02-27 CC Agenda
	RI-1, Minutes
	RI-2, Personnel Transactions
	RI-3, Registers of Demands
	RI-4, Committees' Activities
	RI-5, SELACO Appointment
	RI-6, Fireworks Display
	RI-7, Award of Bid
	RI-8, Desktop Computer Replacements Purchase
	RI-9, IT Cybersecurity Services Renewal
	2.1, Ordinance No. 2024-1
	3.1, 2024 Legislative Platform
	3.2, Tetra Tech Agreement
	3.3, Preview of 2024 Earth Walk Event
	LHSA-1, Register of Demands



